
 

City of Bay Minette 
Planning Commission 

301 D’Olive Street ∙ Bay Minette, Alabama 36507 
Phone (251) 580-1650 ∙ COBM_Planning@cityofbayminetteal.gov 

 
c ityofbayminetteal.gov 

 

 
AGENDA 

January 9, 2025 
Regular Meeting   

8:00 a.m. 
City Hall Council Chambers 

301 D’Olive Street, Bay Minette 
 

1.) Call to Order 
2.) Invocation and Pledge 
3.) Announcements & Registration to Address the Commission Before the meeting begins, Citizens wishing to speak 

must be signed in, notate they wish to speak and follow the Procedures for Addressing the Planning Commission. 

4.) Approval of Minutes for the December 12, 2024, Regular Meeting  
5.) Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflicts of Interest 
6.) Old Business 
7.) New Business 

a.) SD-25001, Old Towne Commons Master Plan Amendment 1 
Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflict of Interest 
Request: Master Plan Amendment Request for Z-24001//SD-24001 Old Towne Commons  
Location: Five (5) parcels totaling 413.4± acres located along State Hwy 59 
            PINs: 92518, 222473, 31532, 83618, 62828 

b.) Comprehensive Plan Draft Review 

c.) Updates & Upcoming Cases 

8.) Reports & Comments 
a.) Mayor/Council/Administration 
b.) Attorney 
c.) Commissioners 
d.) Planning Staff 
e.) Citizen Comments 

9.) Adjournment 
 

 
**Next Regular Meeting – February 13, 2025** 



 
 

 
 
 

 
Bay Minette Planning Commission 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

Minutes December 12, 2024 Monthly Meeting No. 12 
The City of Bay Minette Planning Commission met in Regular Session on Thursday, December 12, 2024. The meeting 
was called to order at 8:03 a.m. by Chairman Todd Stewart, in the Council Chambers located in Bay Minette City Hall, 
at 301 D’Olive Street, Bay Minette, Alabama; this being the proper place, date and hour as advertised to hold such 
meeting.  
 

IN ATTENDANCE At 8:00 a.m. the following members were present, and a quorum established 
Todd Stewart, Chairman 
Robert A. “Bob” Wills, Mayor 
Rob Madison, Building Official/Commission Member 
Ray Clark, Commission Member 
Hiram Templeton, Commission Member 
Neal Covington, Vice-Chairman 
Earl Emmons, Commission Member  
Jim Faulkner, Commission Member 

 
 Commission Members absent  

William Taylor, City Council/Commission Member 
 

 Commission Members late 
None 

 
Other persons in regular attendance  

Lauren Collinsworth, Attorney 
Tammy Smith, City Administrator 
Clair Dorough, City Planner  
Steven Stewart, Fire Inspector 
Paula Bonner, Planner Associate  
Kristina Pittman, North Baldwin Chamber of Commerce 

 
GUESTS Jason Miller, SD-24012 property owner  
   
INVOCATION Commission Member Templeton presented the invocation, followed by the pledge.  
 
ITEM 3. Announcements/Registration to address the Commission 
   
ITEM 4. Approval of the November 14, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes 

Mayor Wills made a motion to approve the November minutes as written.  The motion was seconded by 
Commission Member Emmons and carried unanimously.  

 
ITEM 5. Disclosure of Prior Communications and/or Conflicts of Interest 

None      
ITEM 6. Old Business 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 2 of 22



 
 

 
 
 

None 
 
ITEM 7. New Business 

a.) SD-24012, Lot 7 & 8 of The Pines Minor Subdivision 
Mrs. Bonner presented the Minor Subdivision request for approximately 0.79± acres zoned R-1, Low 
Density Single Family Residential District located on the east side of Marks Avenue, approximately 
600 feet north of E 12th Street to be split back into the original two (2) lots of The Pines Subdivision 
followed by discussion of: 

- The presumption that the original two (2) lots may have been combined into one parcel for 
tax purposes. 

- The R-1 minimum lot size requirement of 15,000 square feet which both lots meet. 
- The R-1 setback requirements which both lots meet. 

Mrs. Bonner reported the Staff Recommendation for Case SD-24012, Lot 7 & 8 of The Pines Minor 
Subdivision request be Approved. 
 
Chairman Stewart opened the Public Hearing for Item 7(a) Case SD-24012, Lot 7 & 8 of The Pines 
Minor Subdivision at 8:11 a.m. 
There were no public comments 

 
Chairman Stewart closed the Public Hearing for Item 7(a) Case SD-24012, Lot 7 & 8 of The Pines 
Minor Subdivision at 8:12 a.m. 
Commission member Clark made a motion to approval Case SD-24012, Minor Subdivision Request.  
The motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Covington and carried unanimously. 

 
b.) Updates & Upcoming Cases  

- Applicant withdrawal of Z-24003, Higher Ground Ventures, LLC Property withdrawal. 
- Old Towne Commons Upcoming Master Plan Amendment request. 
- Upcoming Renovations to Baldwin County District Attorney building. 

   
ITEM  8.  Reports 

a.) Mayor/Council Report – Mayor Wills shared updates on Big Mike’s Steakhouse, the proposed Hotel, 
and Novelis.  Mrs. Smith provided an update on the ongoing redistricting meetings. 

b.) Attorney – None 
c.) Commissioners – None   
d.) Planning Staff – None   
e.) Public Comment – Mrs. Pittman reported on recent and upcoming Chamber events. 

 
ITEM 9. With no further business, Chairman Stewart adjourned the meeting at 8:41 am. 
 

DONE THIS THE 12TH DAY OF DECEMBER 2024 
 

 
 
     _________________________________________________________ 

Chairman, Todd Stewart 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Paula Bonner, Planner Associate 
Motion Summary:  

Item 4.) Approval of the November 14, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes:  

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 3 of 22



 
 

 
 
 

Mayor Wills made a motion to approve the November minutes as written.  The motion was seconded by 
Commission Member Emmons and carried unanimously.  

 
Item 7.) a.) SD-24012, Lot 7 & 8 of The Pines Minor Subdivision 

Commission member Clark made a motion to approval Case SD-24012, Minor Subdivision Request.  The 
motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Covington and carried unanimously. 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 4 of 22



City of Bay Minette 
Planning & Development Services 

 
PLANNING COMMISSION STAFF ANALYSIS 

Planning Commission Meeting Date: January 9, 2025                                                             Case Number: SD-25001 

APPLICATION SUMMARY 
Project Name: Old Towne Commons Master Plan Amendment 
Property Location: State Hwy 31, Appx .75 miles south of Holly Hills 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-28-05-21-0-000-009.001 // 92518 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-28-05-21-0-000-002.001 // 222473 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-28-05-21-0-000-002.000 // 31532 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-28-05-21-0-000-009.000 // 83618 
Property PID/PPIN: 05-28-05-21-0-000-001.000 // 62828 
 

Property Size: 413.40± acres 
Proposed Action: Amend Master Plan for PUD with base zoning: 
R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District   316.8± acres 
R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District       50.2± acres 
B-2, General Business District                             46.4± acres 
Applicant: Baldwin Ventures, LLC 
Property Owner:  Baldwin Ventures, LLC

SITE AND REQUEST SYNOPSIS 
 

 The subject property, which consists of five parcels containing 413.40± acres, is located on the East side of State Highway 59, 
approximately .75 miles south of the northern entrance of Country Club Drive and Holly Hills Municipal Golf Course. The property is 
currently zoned as a PUD with underlying base zoning of R-3 Single Family, R-4 Multi-Family and B-2, General Commercial. It has an 
estimated .68 miles of frontage on Highway 59. Three of the parcels are undeveloped with the exception of a power transmission line and 
internal, dirt roadways; and two parcels contain 
residential dwellings that front Highway 59. The 
property was annexed by Act 2023-145 and pre-zoned 
to R-3, R-4 and B-2 designations during the same 
timeframe. The PUD zoning was approved by Ordinance 
1044 (Case Z-24001) in March of 2024 and the original 
Master Plan was approved in February 2024. This 
property is owned by Baldwin Ventures, LLC, which 
requested the annexation by the City and proposed the 
configuration of the pre-zoning designations as the 
base zoning to allow the progression of future 
development as a Planned Unit Development (PUD). 
This application is for SD-25001, Master Plan 
Amendment.  

ZONING DISTRICTS  

CURRENT ZONING (Case Z-24001) 

6.02.07 PUD, Planned Unit Development. This zoning 
district is to provide an opportunity for the best use of 
land, protection of valuable natural features in the 
community, provide for larger areas of recreational open space, more economical public services and opportunity for mixed use. The 

Subject Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
SD-25001 PUD (R-3, R-4, B-2) Undeveloped and Residential – Approved PUD & Master Plan 

Adjacent Property Zoning Existing Land Use 
North Unzoned, County Planning District 7 Undeveloped 
South Unzoned, County Planning District 7 Undeveloped 
East Unzoned, County Planning District 7 Undeveloped 
West Unzoned, County Planning District 7 Residential and Undeveloped 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 5 of 22



purpose of this provision is to encourage the unified development of tracts of land, much more creative and flexible concepts in site 
planning. The criteria for this zoning district can be found in Article 11 of this Ordinance. 
 

UNDERLYING ZONING 

6.02.04 R-3, Higher Density Single Family Residential District. This district is intended to provide for a higher density of single-family 
structures on smaller lots than those allowed in the R-1 and R-2 districts. Duplexes will be allowed as a special exception. 

6.02.05 R-4, High Density Multi-Family Residential District. The intent of this district is to provide opportunity for high density single-
family, duplex, and multi-family residential development in specified areas. Within this district it is also considered suitable to include 
other uses of a type deemed to be compatible with a good high-density living environment by providing for needed community services. 
Public or community water and sewer facilities are required. 

6.03.02 B-2, General Business District. This district is intended to provide opportunity for activities causing noise and heavy traffic, not 
considered compatible in the more restrictive business district. These uses also serve a regional as well as a local market and require 
location in proximity to major transportation routes. Recreational vehicle parks, very light production and processing activities are 
included. 

MAPPING 
  Existing Zoning Map  Future Land Use Map 

 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 6 of 22



Locator & Site Map 

 

SUBDIVISION MASTER PLAN AMENDMENT 
 

DESCRIPTION ORIGINAL/APPROVED AMENDMENT PROPOSED 
Total Dwelling Units 1,219 1,156 
Total Single Family Residential 827 764 

40 FT Lots 278 241 
50 FT Lots 260 156 
60 FT Lots 135 212 
70 FT Lots 154 155 

Phases 5 (4 SF, 1 MF) 6 (5 SF, 1 MF) 
Density 2.9 Units/Acre Same 
Multi-Family Units 392 Same 
Commercial 46.8 Acres / 11% Same 
Impervious 82 Acres / 20% Same 
Linear Ft of Streets 38,835 38,714 

Access from Hwy 59 2 3 
Cul De-Sacs 5 6 
Terminating/Dead End Streets 5 (1 SF, 4 MF) Same 
Loop/Circle Transitions 2 Same 
Internal Intersections 51(43 SF, 8 MF) 49 (41 SF, 8 MF) 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 7 of 22



Approximate Phasing as Proposed with Original Master Plan Approval 

 
 Approximate Phasing as Proposed with Master Plan Amendment 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 8 of 22



PUBLIC UTILITIES & SITE CONSIDERATIONS 
 

Public Utilities Services:  Water: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
     Gas: North Baldwin Utilities (Service Availability Letter Provided) 

Sewer: Baldwin County Sewer Service (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
Telephone/Internet: AT&T (Service Availability Letter Provided) 

     Electricity: Baldwin EMC (Service Availability Letter Provided) 
Transportation: The proposed development will front on State Hwy 59 a paved and state-maintained 

roadway. ALDOT would be the roadway authority for Hwy 59 and final design would be 
contingent upon their review.  Internal roadways are proposed for construction by the 
developer and dedication to the City after Final Plat approval.  

 
STANDARDS OF APPROVAL / APPLICABLE REGULATIONS 

The following regulations for reviewing Subdivision requests are found in Article 3 – Procedures for Subdivision Plat Approval in the 
Subdivision Regulations of the City of Bay Minette.  

SECTION 3.05 STANDARDS OF APPROVAL 

The Planning Commission shall not approve the subdivision of land if the Commission makes a finding that such land is not suitable for 
platting and development as proposed, due to any of the following: 

3.05.01 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with these Regulations; 

3.05.02 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Ordinance and/or any other plan or 
program for the physical development of the City including but not limited to a Master Street Plan, a Transportation Plan, a Parks Plan, a 
Bicycle Plan, a Pedestrian Plan, or a Capital Improvements Program, where applicable; 

3.05.03 The proposed subdivision is not consistent with other applicable Federal, State or County laws and regulations; or 

3.05.04 Notwithstanding that the proposed subdivision may satisfy the technical, objective provisions of these Regulations, the 
Commission has discretion to deny a subdivision if there is any articulable, rational basis for a determination that the proposed 
subdivision otherwise endangers the health, safety, or welfare of persons or property. 

SECTION 3.12 MASTER PLAN 

3.12.01 Where any subdivision or development site is to be developed in stages or phases, no preliminary plat for any fraction of the site 
shall be accepted for review unless a master plan is submitted or has been previously approved. 

3.12.02 The master plan shall be a conceptual plan showing the entire development site and all component stages or phases, and shall 
express the overall development concept for the site at build-out. 

3.12.03 The subdivider shall submit a written request for review and approval by the Planning Commission and a copy of said master 
plan. The master plan shall be of sufficient detail to show the proposed street, sidewalk and lot layout, drainage, utilities, detention, 
common, recreational, and landscaped areas. 

3.12.04 If the City Planner finds that any proposed preliminary plat substantially deviates from the approved master plan, a revised master 
plan must be approved by the Planning Commission prior to approval of further plats within the development. Examples of a substantial 
deviation includes an increase in the overall lot density; change in number of entrances, connections, or stub outs; decrease in proposed 
open space or amenity areas. 

 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 9 of 22



 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The proposal meets the critera for Master Plan/Amendment submittals as detailed above. This amendment was submitted after more 
definitive surveying and engineering design was completed on the site. The proposed amendment complies with the previously 
approved Master Plan and PUD. The most significant revisions being the addition of the third access from Highway 31, and the 
reduction of the number of single family residential lots from 827 to 764. If the Master Plan Amendment is approved, the developer 
will still retain the right to develop the property as authorized in Ordinance 1044 (Case Z-24001, PUD Approval):  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 
Based on the information submitted by the applicant and the analysis above, staff recommends:  

Planning Commission APPROVE Case SD-25001, Old Towne Commons Master Plan Amendment 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 
For Subdivision Master Plan Amendment applications, the Planning Commission makes the final decision and has the option to: 

 
• Approve the Master Plan Amendment as presented. 
• Approve the Master Plan Amendment with modifications, stating the nature of the required modifications 
• Disapprove the Master Plan Amendment, reasons for denial and referencing the specific section(s) with which the plat does 

not comply  
• Delay action on the Master Plan Amendment due to a lack of information 

 

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 10 of 22



STA
TE

 HW
Y 5

9

STYX RIVER RD

COUNTY RD 39

PIN
E R

D S

TRAWICK RD

SP
RIN

G R
D N

WHITE RD

DURBAN FORK RD

SPRING RD S

BY
RD

 RD

PINE GROVE RD EXT W PIN
E G

RO
VE

 RD

DEER RD

OA
K L

N
CO

UN
TR

Y C
LUB

 DR

PHILLIPS RD

RYLAND ST

NO
EL 

ST

LO
ND

ON
 LN

MOSLEY RD

VINSON LN

C DANIELS RD

CHURCH ST

DOGWOOD LN ¯

0 4,000 8,0002,000
Feet

Zoning Map
Baldwin Ventures, LLC Property

SD-25001, Master Plan Amendment
Request for Old Towne Commons PUD

Road Centerlines

Subject Property

BC Revenue Parcels

R-A Rural Residential and
Agricultural Zone District

R-1 Low Density Single Family
Residential District

R-2 Medium Density Single
Family Residential District

R-3 Higher Density Single-Family
Residential District

R-4 High Density Multi-Family
Residential District

R-4 High Density Multi-Family
Residential District (Historic
Overlay)

R-5 Manufactured/Mobile Home
Residential District

B-1 Local Business District

B-2 General Business District

B-2 General Business District
(Historic Overlay)

M-1 Light Industrial District

M-2 General Industrial District

PUD Planned Unit Development

COBM City Limits

Spanish Fort

City of Bay Minette
Map Date 12/19/2024

0 1 2 3 40.5
Miles

Baldwin Ventures, LLC Property
SD-25001 Site

Spanish Fort Corporate Limits

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 11 of 22



STA
TE

 HW
Y 5

9

STYX RIVER RD

COUNTY RD 39

PIN
E R

D S

TRAWICK RD

SP
RIN

G R
D N

WHITE RD

DURBAN FORK RD

SPRING RD S

BY
RD

 RD

PINE GROVE RD EXT W PIN
E G

RO
VE

 RD

DEER RD

OA
K L

N
CO

UN
TR

Y C
LUB

 DR

PHILLIPS RD

RYLAND ST

NO
EL 

ST

LO
ND

ON
 LN

MOSLEY RD

VINSON LN

C DANIELS RD

CHURCH ST

DOGWOOD LN ¯

0 4,000 8,0002,000
Feet

Future Land Use Map
Baldwin Ventures, LLC Property

SD-25001, Master Plan Amendment
Request for Old Towne Commons PUD

Road Centerlines

Agriculture/Timber

Commercial

Government

Industrial

Institutional

Manufactured Home

Mixed Use

Parks & Recreation

Single Family

Duplex

Multi-Family

Public/Semi-Public

Undeveloped

Utilities

Subject Property

BC Revenue Parcels

COBM City Limits

Spanish Fort

City of Bay Minette
Map Date 12/19/2024

0 1 2 3 40.5
Miles

Baldwin Ventures, LLC Property
SD-25001 Site

Spanish Fort Corporate Limits

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 12 of 22



11052 Quinley Road  
KCS, Baldwin County, Pictometry

¯

0 1,000 2,000500
Feet

Site Map
Baldwin Ventures, LLC Property

SD-25001, Master Plan Amendment Request for
Old Towne Commons PUD

Site Location

Road Centerlines

BC Revenue Parcels

City of Bay Minette
Map Date 12/20/2024

P P I N  -  9 2 5 1 8P P I N  -  9 2 5 1 8
P P I N  -  2 2 2 4 7 3P P I N  -  2 2 2 4 7 3
P P I N  -  3 1 5 3 2P P I N  -  3 1 5 3 2
P P I N  -  8 3 6 1 8P P I N  -  8 3 6 1 8
P P I N  -  6 2 8 2 8P P I N  -  6 2 8 2 8

January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 13 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 14 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 15 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 16 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 17 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 18 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 19 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 20 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 21 of 22



January 9, 2025 Planning Commission Regular Meeting Agenda Packet Page 22 of 22


	January 9, 2025 Regular Meeting Agenda
	Minutes December 12, 2024 Planning Commission
	Minutes December 12, 2024 Monthly Meeting No. 12
	___________________________________

	SD-25001 Amendment Staff Report CD
	Zoning Map SD-25001
	FLU Map SD-25001
	Site Map SD-25001
	0tc master plan



